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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.c. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel) . .. Would like to call the order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee public hearing for the Paia-Haiku-Makawao district. Good evening, ladies
and gentlemen. Thank you for being here this evening. With the Counc ... , Council's
committee we have in attendance Committee Members Carroll, Pontanilla, Anderson,
Mateo, Molina, Kane, and Ms. Johnson is here as well. We wanna thank all of you for
being here this evening. This is an opportunity for you folks to provide comments on the
Mayor's 2007 proposed budget that this Committee received on March 15 which was last
week Wednesday. On a daily basis, starting from yesterday, and on through the month
of ... complete month of April and into May, the Committee will be discussing and
asking questions and soliciting comment from the public, and we will be making
decisions from the Committee level at the end of April, which will be forwarded to the
full Council in May where final decisions will be made. So I just wanted to give you
folks an understanding that we are now in the information gathering stage and receiving
comments from the public, as well as working with the directors and the divisions of the
relative . . . respective departments of the County to gather information regarding their
proposal for the 2007 budget.
Now just for a few clarifications so you understand, the budget that we're discussing is a
budget that will start on July 1st of this year and will conclude next year June 30tt, and
that is the Fiscal Year 2007. So we're not talking about a budget that has to do with
anything that's gonna occur within the next three months as far as functional day-to-day
operations. It's something that's gonna start from July forward for a year.
A couple of things, we just wanted to make sure that when you come forward to testify,
and we have those of you who have signed up, and if you haven't already signed up
please come to our Staff here and they will provide you with the sign up sheet, but we
will be recognizing you in order. We don't have many people and so I think we can just
go with the order that's been provided for us. We need you to come forward ... the very
first thing that's very important for us, because we have you on record and it's being
recorded, is your name. So please say that first. And then if you do recog ... , represent
an organization or are speaking on behalf of somebody please let, let us know that as
well. We appreciate that. We're gonna provide everybody the same amount of time.
We're gonna give you three minutes, and at that three minutes staff will say three
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minutes, and then if you can please conclude your comments with an additional minute.
Now we will be very polite ... if you do go at four minutes, and the four minute time is
given, and if you continue without losing a breath or losing a step, I will be very polite,
but I will interrupt you to ask you to wrap up your remarks. If you continue, please
expect me to be, again, very polite about it, but I will interrupt you again to conclude
your comments, and again it's for all fairness so everybody has a fair shot at sharing your
thoughts with us. Before you walk away, after you end your comments, and this is my
final comment before we start, the Members have a chance to ask questions of you. So if
there are any questions, please remain until we figure out that there's any questions or not
and, and whatever the questions are having to do with your testimony those questions
will be asked by the Committee Members. Some of you may be compelled to ask us
questions. We're not here to answer your questions. We're here to gather your
comments. And if you do have questions you can leave 'em open-ended. I'm sure
Members going be writing down comments that you make, and if there are questions
we'll, we'll take those questions to heart when we're doing our deliberations and our
information gathering. So with that, thank you very much again for being here. Don't be
afraid to walk up to the mike and speak into the mike 'cause we need to hear you. And
so with that, the first person signed up to testify is Mr. Frank Domingo, and Mr. Domingo
will be followed by Mr. Colin Hanlon. Mr. Domingo, good evening .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. DOMINGO: Okay. I'm the handsome guy. The name is Frank Domingo. I come from
Kuau, and I'm gonna speak on your real property tax. I feel that the County has been
very . . . has raised our . . . what do you call assessment? And then in one mouth you
guys say we're gonna try lower your taxes, and then in the same mouth you raise our
assessments to where you take in more money than you're giving back. So what I'm
trying to say is this, there's an inequity in how you are doing this. I would like to know
how you folks are coming into this assessment of all the properties because I live in my
place for over 12 years, and my, my home was built at about 60,000. My property was
valued probably about 100,000. Now it is ... my home is way up there, and my property
is valued at one million. And so there is an inequity as far as how you are or the County
is appraising real properties here, and you must tell me as ... you get the letter that says
fair market value. There is no such thing as a fair market value unless you come to each
individual and check their homes. Now if you check my other home, if the termite let go
the house is worth nothing. So that's what I'm trying to tell you. You cannot tax a
building ... if I call the bank I say I wanna sell my property, he says your building isn't
worth a cent, and that is the truth because this home is over 50 years old. When this
home was built it was half of a ... the middle of Malulani(?) Hospital Nursing Home
so ... you weren't born yet. So what I'm trying to say is this, you cannot come and tell
me that that property is ... and the house is worth a bit 100,000 and this is 250,000 you
can't do that. You must have an equity of how you tax people. I've heard a lot of rumors
about oh, if you're by the beach you halfway up and all that ... I think the property tax is
a very, very ... the worse thing that I can say about it is very unconstitutional, and it
doesn't represent the people that needs the help. You take all the senior citizens now
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they probably having a heart attack because they saw their assessments, and they say
what I'm gonna do? How am I gonna pay? And then if you had gone to the real property
tax office, and look at the girls that were taking the calls, I think that you would have to
apologize to them because I saw some of them cry in there. I said why you crying? They
said boy, they swearing us, and screaming at us over the phone. And so that is what you
are causing, the inequity between senior citizens and the developers and everything else.
Don't tax us because the developers wanna build. That's their business.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DOMINGO: Yeah, okay. Cut your clock for awhile. And then you can't allow that to
happen again. This is too much. As for me, I'm 77 now so I'm on a fix income. So
when you take my tax I don't have money unless you want me to pay you for the whole
year at $10 a month. You can't ... you ask everybody that they have to come out ... and
say your tax is 10,000 or 5,0000, you got all the senior citizens they're crying now.
They're begging. What they're gonna do? So I ask that you guys take another look at
this real property assessment and give a fair shake of not only to everyone, but the senior
citizens that have helped to build this County to where it is. If it not for them you
wouldn't be here. So I would like to ask that you folks take a good look at this real
property assessment and begin to say this is not the way we want it.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. DOMINGO: They look for money, okay. Thank you. I didn't hear you. Say again.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. DOMINGO: Four minutes. Oh, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Domingo.
Question, Ms. Anderson.

Members, any questions for Mr. Domingo?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Domingo, thanks for coming. Would you be willing
to tell us how much the assessment on your, on your house increased?
MR. DOMINGO: Well, the one I have I went back ten years, and the assessment for the
property was ... well, I didn't remember everything. The assessment was $100,000 I
think and then the ... that is 1990 ... ten years I went back, and I still living in the same
house, and the home I built was $60,000, and it hasn't changed except for the paint that I
put on it, okay. And then my property went up to this last one here. I fainted because it
was one million so many hundreds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's the for property what-MR. DOMINGO: The whole thing, house and property one million something dollars.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ten years ago it was 100,000?
MR. DOMINGO: About that. And then the other property was less than that in fact. And so
when you come down to all of this, and then you come up with that fair (inaudible) excise
tax credit then the excise tax credit is because a lot of people don't understand that and so
a lot of people haven't signed for it. So it'll be up to you as the County official to present
to all of the senior citizens how you can get the excise tax credit because a lot of them
don't know.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Domingo.
MR. DOMINGO: Yeah, go ahead.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Domingo? Hearing
none-MR. DOMINGO: Don't ask because you going get plenty.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
MR. DOMINGO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, next to testify is Colin Hanlon, and following Mr. Hanlon is Gina
McClain.
MR. HANLON: Good evening my name is Colin Hanlon. I'm the Executive Director with the
Boys and Girls Club of Maui. Today I'm here representing the Haiku Club to testify in
favor of the Haiku Club. I'd like to take this opportunity first and foremost to thank you
for this current fiscal year's budgetary increase for all the youth centers. I know we were,
it was a long time coming, and it was a well-needed and well-used by the Boys and Girls
Club of Haiku who has used the money to increase the number of youth served here in
Haiku and create more and better opportunities for the youth, and couple of the youth will
come up little bit later and get to the important testimony. I would also like to ask that
you support this year's budget for the youth centers at the, at the same I don't really feel
that we're gonna be coming in for an increase at all, but please support that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hanlon. Members, any questions for Mr. Hanlon? Hearing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next is Gina McClain, and Ms. McClain will be
followed by Molli Fleming.
MS. McCLAIN: Good evening. My name is Gina McClain. I'm the Unit Director at the Haiku
Boys and Girls Club. Currently we have 265 youths at our center, and if anybody knows
how small the community center is you can probably imagine we're busting at the seams
there. We're averaging about 80 kids a day at our youth center, and one of the things that
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our staff continually strives to do is to provide quality programs for our kids, as well as
varied activities for the different interest of our children and everything. One of the
things that is hard ... it is the hard work of our staff that we continue try to meet that
goal. It also is the help of our community and our parents that helps us meet that goal,
and it's also the continued strong support that we get from you guys that helps us meet
that goal. So what I wanna say tonight to you as both a parent and a citizen is thank you
very much for your support in doing that. I absolutely love my job working with the
kids.
One of the things that I wanna let you know that I am most proud of that our center has
done this past year is establishing a relationship with both the Haiku Community
Association and the Haiku Elementary along with the kids at the Boys and Girls Club,
whether it be working for the American Red Cross in raising ... doing fundraising for the
hurricane relief effort, or anything from our kids and the staff volunteering working for
the Hoolaulea. So that's something that our kids and our staff are continuing to work at
is building those relationships within the community with the organizations that exist
there. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. McClain. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony this evening. Molli Fleming, and Ms. Fleming will be followed by
Rex Takushi.
MS. FLEMING: Hi, I'm Molli Fleming. I work for Maui Community College as a Spanish
Teacher, and also I'm their service learning coordinator. And I'm here on behalf of Maui
Economic Opportunity's Enlace Hispano tonight. Actually, it's Thursday night at MCC,
and right now at six o'clock we started our weekly Spanish/English language exchange
class, which I'm doing jointly with Silvia Naiberg from Enlace Hispano. And I'm here
because I'm told that when they ask for a budget increase that they didn't look like they
were gonna get it. And I know from very ... working very closely for the last few years
with Enlace Hispano just how their caseload has grown, and all the different projects that
they're getting involved in to make sure that the hugely growing Hispanic community on
Maui is made aware of services that they need in order to be connected to what they need
to live here comfortably on Maui. And I'm involved right now in getting English
available to people. We're trying to make more opportunities available on the Lahaina
side for people that are working over there to be able to get more opportunity to work up
with their English, and it looks right now with the budget that they're being given to
operate with that things are gonna stay pretty stagnant, and I don't think that we can have
that happen. I think that we all know that the Hispanic community is growing on Maui,
and money needs to be put in a place where we can address their needs. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Fleming. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony this evening. Rex Takushi, and he'll be followed by Lacie Olson.
MR. TAKUSHI: Okay, good evening, Council members. I have to read from a page 'cause I'm
not good off the cuff. Okay, thank you for coming out to hear the community's requests
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for Fiscal Year 2007. I'm a Captain with the Maui Fire Department, as well as a resident
of Haiku. I would like to ask that all of you support the item on the proposed budget
relating to land acquisition for a county multiplex which include a future Haiku fire
station. Haiku needed a fire station years ago, but had to take a back seat to areas with
more immediate concerns such as Wailea and Kula. These stations have been built and
Haiku needs has grown along with its growth and housing that has been going on for a
number of years now. The purchase of almost 28 acres would be a start for the planning
of a new fire station, along with other community needs that you would see fit to propose
in the future. Haiku is one of the last community of its size and population that does not
have fire protection that can be on scene within five minutes. The time is here for a plan
to be started, and it will start with the land that can house a fire station. Members of the
County Council have been one of the most important factors in the level of safety and
professionalism that the Maui Fire Department has known for, and you have been more
than generous in funding the necessary equipment and training that we as a fire service
need. I humbly ask of you once more to provide funding that will allow us to give the
citizens of Haiku and Maui the level of safety that they need and require. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Captain if you can state your name for the record, please.
MR. TAKUSHI: Oh, I'm sorry. Rex Takushi.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Mr. Takushi. Thank you for coming out here
to give testimony for the purchase of land out in Haiku for a fire station. What do you
envision in terms of size of the fire station? Is it something like what you see here in Paia
or Makawao or something along that size?
MR. TAKUSHI: Paia if you look at it it's outgrown itself. It's, it's so cramped they can't even
tum the truck around. They need to make sure they can go in and out. Haiku with the
amount of land that's there now if we can purchase it, you know, as well as for other
County agencies, I'd say probably four to five acres would be a smart move that you
could plan 40, 50,60 years into the future.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Captain, just so you know,
yesterday in our opening remarks, I know Mayor came forward and talked about the
request. A question was asked of him, and maybe you can assist. We asked that because
as we've stated earlier the budget that's before us starts on July 1St, and so obviously the
key question seems to be is the seller willing to hold that property for the County's use
between now and July 1st, and so if you can provide assistance with Mr. DeLeon, who I
think the Mayor said is overseeing that. We also made a written request to ask that they
can confirm a written commitment by the seller to make sure that that land is available
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between now and then. Otherwise we made a suggestion, and I think you are aware of it,
of making a current year proposal to get monies from this current fiscal year.
MR. TAKUSHI: Okay, I can't speak for the seller, but I have been in touch with the realtor for a
number of weeks now. And as we've been going along, the realtor has been relaying to
the seller who is on the mainland right now of the concern that we have for this and, you
know, how good it would be for the County to get it. I think from our understanding the
realtor from what he's saying is if the owner is kind of seeing that the proposal is going
along, we're getting a lot of support for it, there might be a way ... he might hold off on
it. In my last conversation with him I got the impression that she was willing to hold off
for a few months, but I need to touch base with him again and verify that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TAKUSHI: And I can get back to you on that also.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and again it's very important. I think the body has already recognized
that ifthere's some level of ... or ifthere isn't a commitment to hold until July 1st then
this discussion needs to take place very soon within the current budget cycle which is
now and in the next couple of months. So we're just trying to make you aware ofthat as,
you know, the Captain working with this situation-MR. TAKUSHI: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and so that's the assistance that the body is gonna need to know. If it's
available up 'til July then it's a thing that we can talk about in this current budget, but if
it's not, then it's something that we need to talk about like very soon-MR. TAKUSHI: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --to, to close the deal so to speak. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks so much. And one of the things that I wanted to
out from you is would it help if the Council passed a resolution in support or urging the
Administration to move forward with whatever kind of undertaking is required to enter
into a Memorandum of Agreement or something if we were to pass a resolution?
MR. TAKUSHI: You know I'm not familiar with the workings of the County Council and the
administration themselves, the rules that they have to abide by, but I'm pretty, pretty
positive that if the realtor and the owner seeing that the Council, you know, is working
with the majority in passing these kinds of resolutions, I think she'd probably be willing
to take it off the market for us if she hasn't done so already.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And the only reason I suggest that is because we don't
make budget amendments, but if there is a sense of urgency I'm sure that if there is the
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majority support on the Council, because a resolution is nonbinding, we could possibly
with the assistance of the Budget Chair or our Chair move forward with that.
MR. TAKUSHI: You know if that's possible to make an amendment like ... or resolution like
that, if the County was to put in that they were negotiating for the property we could
probably get a 60-day, a right to inspect on the property, and that would lock it up at least
until the budget hearings are completed that would work real good.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much. I appreciate it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Captain. Members, any further questions?
Appreciate your testimony this evening.

Seeing none.

MR. TAKUSHI: Thank you very much.
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Lacie Olson. Lacie followed by Jamie Hall.
MS. OLSON: Thank you. Hi, my name is Lacie Olson, and I am from Tennessee. I have been a
member of the Boys and Girls Club for two months, and the staff workers welcomed me
with open arms the first day I was there. There are games and tournaments and you can
win prizes when you play, and there are very fun fieldtrips. There are snacks when we
are hungry. I think it is the best place for a kid to go after school, and if I didn't have the
Boys and Girls Club I would be at home doing nothing instead of having fun at the club.
And the Boys and Girls Club of Haiku thanks you for your support. Thank you to the
MEO for your transportation.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Lacie. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Jamie Hall, and Ms. Hall will be followed by Lynn Curtis.
MS. HALL: Hi, my name is Jamie Hall, and I will be representing the Boys and Girls Club of
Haiku, Maui. I've been coming to the club for about seven years now. The club is very
important to me because it keeps me and others away from bad influences and the wrong
crowds. I love helping out the club by doing community service projects. I have
participated and helped in many areas of the club, which is one of the many reasons I was
chosen as a Haiku Club youth of the year. I would like to thank the MEO for providing
transportations, and I would also like to thank the staff at the club for making the club a
safe and positive place for the kids.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Hall. Members, any questions? Seeing none. Thank you very
much for your testimony.
MS. HALL: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Lynn Curtis--good evening, Ms. Curtis--followed by Alex Michailidis.
MS. CURTIS: Okay, good evening, Council members. Thank you for braving the weather and
the traffic to come out and listen to us. My name is Lynn Curtis and I'm speaking tonight
as a member of the Board of Directors of the Boys and Girls Club of Maui, and I would
just like to voice my, my gratitude to you for walking your talk, and continually
supporting the Boys and Girls Club. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Curtis. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd just like to thank you for donating your time to the
Boys and Girls Club as a board member.
MS. CURTIS: Well, thank you. My children are now grown and gone, and you know my
support of the club as a board member really speaks to how much I believe that the clubs
are really an asset to all of the communities that they serve. Thank you.
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Alex Michailidis followed by Maggie Prevenas, and I know you
will correct me if I mispronounced names . . . the bottom one, thank you. Thank you,
Alex.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Good evening, Mr. Chair and County Council members. My name is
Alex Michailidis. You can pronounce my name however you want if you continue
funding for our projects so no worries about that. Once again my name is Michael
Michailidis, and I'm the project coordinator for the East Maui Watershed Partnership
Project, the project out of the University of Hawaii. First off I'd like to thank you all for
the financial contributions the County Council, and the Mayor have approved the past
few years for our project, and after a review of this year's, this fiscal year, upcoming
fiscal year budget request that you continue to support . . . providing funding to
organizations that are really involved in protecting our natural resources. You should all
be commended for the, for the vision and foresight you have had these past few years
because there is no other island in the State that is contributing, directly contributing to
watershed partnerships or invasive species committees as Maui is. So a round of
applause for you all.
(applause)
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Please continue to do the right thing. Don't follow in the footsteps of
other counties 'cause they don't have the wisdom that you all have. With that being said,
I do hope that the allocations in this year's budget are approved for watershed protection,
in particular the $200,000 that is out of the Office of Economic Development for all five
of Maui counties watershed partnerships, and the $100,000 that the Department of Water
Supply is allocating to the East Maui Watershed Project. And if there is the slightest
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possibility that any more money in pockets, behind car seats, we could sure use it. We
are looking to expand our project in the coming six, seven, eight, nine months both in the
number of employees that we have on our project, and the acres that we intend to
manage. Currently we have eight staff managing about 12,000 acres of forest, upper
elevation forest, and by the end of the year we hope to add another four or five
individuals to protect this vital resource area, and continue fence constructions. As you
may be aware we have published a draft environmental assessment looking to expand our
project by an additional 15,000 acres. So we are looking to continue this resource
protection work, heading eastward around Hana all the way out to Kaupo protecting I
believe all the native parts of the forest. Our budget right now, our operating budget is
roughly little more than $500,000 a year, and with the staff expansion we're gonna be
approaching 8 or $900,000 a year so again every little bit helps. In particular County
monies do enable us to receive non-County funding, and in the four years that I've been
with the project we received about 300 ... the East Maui project alone has received about
$350,000 from you all. Needless to say you contribute far more than that to all the other
entities that are involved in protecting this vital resource. But the 350 that we've
received from you has enabled me to raise over a million and a half dollars in non-County
funding. So again every-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: --little bit helps. We've had a lot of fiscal administrators of our contracts
interacting with the ... interacting with the County. Ideally you have all received reports
on our accomplishments over the years. I can only hope that, and if you haven't please
let me know, and I will definitely tell you what a great job staff is doing.
In closing, the original project was to build ten miles of fence. We have half a mile left
remaining and staff would be out here testifying with me and ... but they're up in the
mountain right now probably getting wet and looking forward to coming out tomorrow.
We do have another educational component of our project. This past year we provided
outreach to over 600 students, second grade, through Maui Community College, and
again, thank you so much for your support, past and present, and your service to the
community_ Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Michailidis. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming. You said you're gonna expand
your area by 15,000 acres. Does that mean you're gonna expand the fencing project too?
MR. MICHAILIDIS: If approved the, the additional expansion of the project would involve
another 20 some odd miles of fence between the 3,000 and 4,000 foot elevation, kinda
building a fence around the upper elevation forest of East Maui that has to be approved
that's still in draft form. We're receiving comments now from the pUblic.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you say approved you mean the draft EA?
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MR. MICHAILIDIS: Yes, the draft EA.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And who's approving it DLNR?
MR. MICHAILIDIS: DLNR.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the, the additional 25 miles of fencing that would
complete the circle around the upper elevation?
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well done. Thank you.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Maggie Prevenas followed by Mr. George Kahanu.
NOTE:

short pause while Ms. Prevenas circulated a poster board of the Future Scientists and Engineers of
America's bridge-building activity, 16 thank-you notes from her students to Maui Economic
Development Board (MEDB), a news clipping regarding the bridge-building competition, and written
testimony in support of MEDB.

MS. PREVENAS: Hi, I'm Maggie Prevenas, and I'm the volunteer advisor for the Future
Scientists and Engineers of America at Kalama Intermediate School. I do it as a
volunteer, and only through the help of Maui Economic Development Board, who funds
our, our membership fee to the national organization we would be able to participate in
making such amazing bridges as you see before you, to let you know how important it is,
and how important it is to the kids future what Maui Economic Development Board does
in funds. When I started last year (end of tape) but engineers did or what they were.
Now this year I had six girls that all want to be engineers, and that's, that's a really big
thing, especially 'cause, you know, it's like for nerds and stuff. I work with Maui
Economic Development Board, and the Women in Technology Project in funding FSEA,
and this year I'm proud to say that we had a group of four girls that were, that went to
Oahu and took third place overall in the bridge building competition against all the Oahu
teams, and that bridge right there held over 170 pounds. So they ... and we didn't know
anything about bridge building when we got into it until a volunteer from the community
came and talked to us about crossing the grain. (pause) That's my group. And I do work
besides with my eighth graders, I also have sixth graders and seventh graders in an after
school activity called science club which also is funded through Maui Economic
Development Board.
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And now I'm putting on my MACC hat because I know that you fund Maui Arts and
Cultural Center. Do you? Yes. And they offer teaches ... programs for teachers that
have completely allowed me to help my students learn so much more deeply. I'm a
science teacher, and in many of my assessments now I use drawing and drama, and
writing, and poetry, and the students are able to show me that they understand mastery of
these very deep subjects at a very deep level. And I know it is because of the education
that I've gotten through the Maui Arts and Cultural Center in the workshops that they
offer for teachers that have permitted me to do this.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PREVENAS: I also wanna put a plug in because they inspired me to put on a play, which
will be first play in a very long time at Kalama Intermediate School, the Heart of Honu,
and I was able to develop and choreograph, and put in music, and everything else because
of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center, their outreach with ... I didn't know nothing
before. I, I absolutely knew any ... so I really appreciated it very much. I appreciate
your support of the arts, and your support for the Maui Economic Development Board.
So thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Prevenas. Members, questions?
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. We'll give you the moment to gather the pieces of art. Next to
testify is Mr. George Kahanu.
Mr. Kahanu will be followed by Mackenzie
Findelstein [sic}.
MR. KAHANU: Members of the Maui County Council Budget and Finance Committee, aloha.
My name is George Kahanu. I am speaking in behalf of MEO, Maui Economic
Opportunity. First I wanna thank you for your support throughout the years. I know that
when my wife was still alive she was very active with MEO, and very active with the
Council too. So it's been a wonderful experience.
This past year has been a very successful year. Mayor Arakawa has reduced Maui' s
Economic Opportunities budget really significant for the coming year, and as you all
know whatever Maui MEO does is for the community, It's a nonprofit organization and
then things are done for the community. Since the County's expecting a surplus of $86
million from property tax collections, it's according to the paper, I think it's important
that we consider reinstalling the budget cuts that the Mayor made on the MEO budget.
Thank you for the opportunity to come to speak before you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kahanu. Members, questions for Mr. Kahanu? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
budget by?

George, how much did the Mayor reduce the MEO
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MR. KAHANU: Let's see now ... ? The budget submitted by MEO amounted to $8,843,150,
and the Mayor's budget reduced that amount to $5,305,924 so a difference I think a
reduction of $3,537,226.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: As far as the MEO budget, did it affect ... the reduction
did it affect any matching Federal monies that you know?
MR. KAHANU: I really don't know. Can I call on the director now to speak?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. KAHANU: Sandy Baz. He would ... Sandy do you know?
MR. BAZ (spoke from the audience): (inaudible) or do you want me to testify ... I can testify
after.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, fine, fine. Okay, I'll ask him the question.
Thank you, George.
MR. KAHANU: He can testify after, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Are there any questions for Mr. Kahanu? Any further questions? Hearing
none. Mr. Kahanu thank you very much. Next to testify is Mackenzie Findelsten [sic} or
Findelstein [sic}. And I'm sorry if it's ... sten or stein ... and following Mackenzie is
Kimberly Mufalli.
MS. FINDEISEN: Aloha, my name is Mackenzie. I love going to the Boys and Girls Club
everyday. I couldn't wait until I turned nine years old. I think the day I turned nine years
old I signed right up for the membership. I'm ten now and I still love going to, going to
the Boys and Girls Club after, after school. The staff is so nice, and I really enjoy seeing
them everyday. I started working in the snack bar selling snacks and I love doing that. I
feel safe at the Boys and Girls Club and feel ... and most of my friends are there too.
My Mom loves to work, but it makes her late a lot. So being able to go to the Boys and
Girls Club is perfect for my Mom and me. I want to thank the MEO for all their money
to support the Boys and Girls Club. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members any questions for Mackenzie? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony.
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Kimberly Mufalli, and following Ms. Mufalli is Terry Driskell.
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MS. MUFALLI: Hi, my name is Kim Mufalli, and I'm here to speak on behalf of the Haiku
Youth Center, the Boys and Girls Club. I have four children that attend the Haiku Youth
Center, and it's pretty much my kids home away from home 'cause we live out in Huelo
so we're about 20 minutes from Haiku, and we live way out in the middle of nowhere.
Our, our closest neighbors are half mile away that have kids, and we don't get many
visitors 'cause we're behind a locked gate down a 4-wheel drive road. And I think that
that's, you know, probably fairly common for a lot of the Haiku area of families that, you
know, a lot of homes are very rural and they're not right in Haiku. So a lot of the kids
that come to Haiku Youth Center their parents aren't home 'til late in the evening, or they
live so far that, you know, they come there for, for ... to play with their friends, for a
sense of community, they have tons and tons of different kind of activities going on after
school that if they go home they don't get to participate. They get to play football,
soccer, baseball. They have tournaments for foosball and ping-pong. They have a chess
club. They have a team club. They get to go on fieldtrips, they go to see musical
concerts, hula shows. They get to participate in community projects like native plant
projects and different things like that. Our Haiku Community Center has really grown a
lot in the last couple of years, and I think there are a couple of reasons for that. Partly is
just the growth of Haiku itself, and the reflection of the, the growth of Haiku Youth
Center, you know, reflects the growth in Haiku, but also the staff that we have at Haiku
Youth Center right now, the ladies that are there we have Gina and Nancy here tonight,
and then there's Maile and Janelle, and Joy, and these ladies are all so dedicated. They
work so hard at what they do, and they have just worked so hard to get all these programs
going and to take advantage of all the resources that we have in our community to offer
every kid that comes to the Haiku Youth Center has something going on for them there.
And these ladies they just, they have a lot of concern for the kids, they're caring, the kids
trust them, they know that they have a place to go ... they treat everyone with respect ...
everyone can come there and be an individual and still be a part of our community and
that's so important for a family like ours who, you know, we don't have a neighborhood
for the kids to just go run around to the neighbor's house and stuff. So it's just, it's been
such a blessing to have all these activities going on at the Haiku Community Center, and
even if school's out, if it's a school holiday, our kids don't wanna stay home. They
wanna go to the youth center. They're up and running 7:30. They're down there by eight
o'clock if we can get 'ern there. It's just really, really, really important part of their lives,
and it, it adds a huge quality of life for our family and our children and a whole lot of the
Haiku area children. So I really encourage your support for Haiku Youth Center in the
upcoming years as we're growing as a community.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mufalli. Members, any questions for Ms. Mufalli? Hearing
none.
MS. MUFALLI: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: (inaudible) Next to testify is Terry Driskell. He'll be followed by Vince
McClung.
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MR. DRISKELL: Good evening, Council members. My name is TelTY Driskell. I'm sure
you're familiar with me from last week when we spoke in front of your body. I represent
my neighborhoods from Upper Ulumalu Road which are here a must, and they've elected
me to be the mouthpiece as it were.
As such I just wanted to summarize what we covered last week to kind of bring it all
together for you for your consideration. First off, we do live on the grid not off the grid,
we have electricity, we have water, we have cable so we are a part of the County. We're
not way out past Huelo somewhere. Having said that, the water aspect is what brought
this issue to light and made it more of an issue than what it was previously. The previous
Administration saw fit to maintain this road. Since this Administration took office it has
not been maintained, and since the waterline was put in around 2001, it exacerbated the
problem that already existed, and now it has become both a health and a safety feature. I
personally have had some medical problems that I won't bore you with, but I'm not the
only one that lives on that road that has the same. As such, excuse me, I think it is
incumbent upon you as a body to appropriate the monies for this road, and much that you
will have to consider many things in this budget, I propose to you that this is one of basic
necessity. We're not a nonprofit. We pay everyday when we go to that gas pump, we
pay tax money for roads. We don't have a road, and beyond that I think the issue of
whether it's a private road or a public road, I think that's already been settled. Even with
that, before you do your title search, in the fact that if you look at any of our deeds there's
no mention relative to a private road. Second of all in my process to subdivide my
property, I've had to dedicate an eight foot right of way for future road widening. I don't
think you have to do that on private roads. So I say to you it, I believe it is incumbent
upon you, and we make a plea to you, we're not making a demand, but I think that you
need to do the right thing and fix our road and bring it up to County standards. We're
only talking approximately a mile and a half to a mile and three-quarters of roadway.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DRISKELL: So in your budget let's go ahead, and as we talked about last week, go ahead
and give us a quick fix with some loads of rock and some grading to get us through.
sure it's gonna be worse than ever with all the rain we've had. Get us a quick fix, and in
this budget allocate the money to get our road fixed and let's be done with it once and for
all. Thank you so much for your consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Driskell. Members, questions? Mr. Molina followed by Ms.
Anderson.
(applause)
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Mr. Driskell and thank you for coming out to
offer your testimony on the road. You know I had a chance to go out and look at the
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road, but it wasn't ... there was no rain. Can you describe to the Committee Members
what it's like when it rains on that road?
MR. DRISKELL: Well, have you heard the term "third world"? Without sounding facetious,
because of the lack of rocks in the appropriate places, and even when they're put there
they get washed away. So when you cross a, a gulch in the road if you will, your car
tends to slide because of the mud. The... where they put concrete around the water
meter heads if you will, those have eroded around them so they create a hazard on the, on
your tires, etcetera, and it's kinda like if you recall the lower section of Upper Ulumalu
just above five corners before Pakanu was put in, when we use to slide into each other
when it rained like this, we're fast approaching that. We're right there on the verge of
that. So you know it really is a safety issue so we appeal to you on that basis.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. DRISKELL: Thank you. We appreciate your help, Mr. Molina, as well.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I just wanna make a comment, Chair. We've got
one more week or the Administration has one more week to let us know if they're gonna
kick in some gravel and get some immediate help, and with this rain we're pushing that
issue. I've already called once. So I just want you to know that.
The other thing is that my staff is also researching the subdivision files when this area
was first subdivided because what we believe is that the reason it's not on the records as a
County roadway is because the process to dedicate it to the County was never followed
through on so we're working on that. And hopefully that will show that it is a road that
suppose to be the County's road so that they will be maintaining it in the future like they
have in the past.
And the other thing I wanted to let you know is that hopefully the Administration will be
cooperative and will want to come out and take care of your immediate needs, and that if
the Council then allocates funding for a permanent fix that they will then step forward
and follow through on it, but I just wanted you to know that no matter if the Council
allocates funding it's the Administration who has to release the money and actually do
the work.
MR. DRISKELL: And I ... yeah, I might also add if you need for us to do anything in our
capacity along those lines, please let us know 'cause we're more than willing to.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Driskell. Members, thank you.
(applause)
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CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Vince McClung. Following Mr. McClung is Raven Iverson.
MR. McCLUNG: Good evening, Council members. My name is Vince McClung, and I
represent Paia Mainstreet Association in connection with the Wailuku Mainstreet
Association and Tri-Isle Resource Center. I wanna first of all say thank you for this
process that you're embarking on now for the next couple of weeks. We as a community
appreciate the fact that you take great interest in hearing what we think about the
spending going on in our County and we just ... yeah, we appreciate you hearing us out.
As a volunteer member of a nonprofit organization that has benefited greatly from the
County's partnership with it, I wanna say thank you for last year's funding that you
provided for the entire mainstreet program on our island. It's very exciting to see the
growth that's taking place with the mainstreet program. For instance the Haiku
Mainstreet Association has just been brought on line and they're up and running and
working on their strategic plan, and you have seen several of our other strategic plans in
front of you over the last few years those of ... from Paia and Makawao, and you know
those were valuable documents that our Executive Director Jocelyn Perreira and her
small staff, and a huge number of volunteers of professionals that joined with the
volunteer board members of our member communities to provide some pretty crucial
documents like the strategic plans, business capacity studies, country town guidelines, all
those kinds of things that have been generated through our different member
communities over the last few years. I do appreciate the fact that you have recognized
over the many years now--I think almost 20 years--the partnership that you share with the
mainstreet program and we would ask that you continue that partnership. We value that
very, very much and, you know, the small towns are a great resource for us as an island.
One that does need to be watchdog, one that needs to be guarded because as you see
before you or have had before you this evening, all members, all local residents of this
small town north shore community and ... it's just vitally important that we continue to
pay attention to the nuances of uniqueness that the small towns of Maui have to offer not
just for the world as they come year after year to see our beautiful island, but for those of
us as residents to continue to enjoy. You'll have before you during, during this budget
process a packet of letters from all the member towns with letters from all the chairs, as
wen as capital improvement project lists. Some of those for Paia area would, would
involve the ongoing renovation of some of our parks. One of which is close to our heart
of course is Paia Beach Park. The bathrooms great, no shower though, you know those
kinds of things we need to consider. What we can continue to do to offer our local
people better quality-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. McCLUNG: --activities and access to things like that here on, on the north shore. Also
involved, included in the capital improvement projects, of course it's the bypass that so
many of us on the north shore are looking forward to. We need your continued help with
the State and the whole process that's going on with that to see that finally come to
fruition. I don't think we wanna see aunties and uncles standing out on our road as the
aunties and uncles have had to do over on Lahaina side to get attention for bypass. We
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don't want that ... and Uncle George ... we wanna see that pushed through as quickly as
possible. It's gonna take partnership with State, County, and all of us, you know,
working together for that. The final thing, you've heard from the Boys and Girls Club
tonight and the keiki have been here and stuff. The policing definitely needs to be
upgraded on the north shore. Fire station definitely in Haiku. We need that ongoing
focused attention-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. McCLUNG: --on our north shore and we appreciate all that you do to service us as a
community. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you Mr. McClung. Members, any questions? Hearing none. I
appreciate your testimony. Thank you. Next to testify is Raven Iverson. She'll be
followed by Kathleen Baldwin.
MS. NERSON: Good evening, thank you for the opportunity to speak this evening. My name
is Raven Iverson. I'm an entrepreneur here in Haiku. I started a business called "Maui
Bag Ladies". It's a Hawaiian bag ... handbag ... oh, okay. Oh, hello. So I've started a
new business as an entrepreneur called "Maui Bag Ladies". I make one of a kind
handcrafted hula bag, handbag. I also attend Maui Community College, which is where I
first heard about MEO BDC. After learning about MEO program, I wanted to get
involved for the success of my business. So within a week I called and spoke to Gary
Lum who I found to be very easy to talk to and got me into the Core Four class, which
was taught by Susie Thieman who has a great sense of humor and an abundance of
patience for helping me to understand the information because I do have somewhat of a
learning disability. After the first class I knew my business would improve in all areas.
I'm not naturally good with figures, and I know nothing about the ins and outs of
business. However, my confidence has soared as well as the passion to succeed having
MEO to guide me. This organization is now like my family, and is the best thing I could
have done for my business. The business loan I received from MEO BDC, has assisted
me to jumpstart my business in a positive direction. I feel confident in this organization,
and the networking possibilities that has begun from our monthly alumni meetings. I will
continue to be an active member of this organization throughout my business life. And
also I wanted to say when I started to contemplate my business, I was recently widowed
so Ijust stuck my neck out there, and it was a dream, and now being a part ofMEO it has
become a reality, and I feel a lot of support from this organization, and just to let
everybody know that anybody can have their dream at any age. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Iverson. Members, questions for Ms. Iverson? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Kathleen Baldwin followed by Matt Daniells.
MS. BALDWIN: I'm Kathleen Baldwin, and I have a house in Haiku on Upper Ulumalu Road.
And for 25 years I've had this property and the road right now is worse than it's ever
been since I've lived there. I spent a month in India last year traveling in rural areas. I
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never drove on a road that was as bad as Upper Ulumalu is right now ... talk about third
world. And I remembered 24 years ago when Hannibal Tavares blew us off because he'd
said we're just a bunch of hippies that lived out in the country and he didn't think we
deserved to have our road taken care of back then, and we've been fighting this struggle
ever since then, and so I hope that you all would please consider to give us appropriations
to take care ... I'm also upset because today I just slid on the road and smashed the side
of my car so I'm kind of mad so it's little bit timely that you're here right now, and I'd
appreciate you helping to get some money to take care the road. And can I talk about
another topic? One more topic. I noticed on your brochure here that ... for the 12th year
Maui was voted "best island in the world", and I wanted to know who is making that
judgment that we are the best. If we cut $3 million out of the MEO budget, and if we
can't take care of our youth, and our kids that have ice problems, and cut our ... raise the
taxes on our senior citizens, how are we the best island in the world? Are we the best at
taking care of the rich people that come here? Or are we gonna be judged by being the
best at taking care of our youth and our senior citizens? So thank you.
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Baldwin. Members ... Ms. Baldwin. Ms. Baldwin, excuse me.
Questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know we're not suppose to answer their questions, but I
can't resist this. The best island ... the best island in the world title that Maui has held
for how many years-MS. BALDWIN: It says 12.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --is voted on by the readers of Conde Nast Travel
Magazine. These are high-end travelers. So that's where that that award comes from
which is good for the travel industry, but it does not reflect anything about the residential
living conditions ofMaui. It's about high-end travelers enjoying their visit to Maui.
MS. BALDWIN: Right. I mean, I do understand that, but if all this money is coming to Maui
why are budgets being cut? Why can't we take care of the people that deserve to be
taken care of. They're at the end of their life with respect and dignity that's all. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Baldwin? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony Ms. Baldwin. Thank you. Matt Daniells, and Mr. Daniells will be
followed by Briana Welker.
MR. DANIELLS: Good evening everybody. I'm here as the representative of the Haiku
Community Association and the strategic planning process. I'm here to request funding
for the continued process, and we've been working sometime now with Tri-Isle, and it's
quite an engaging process, and with their help we've got a much broaden outreach, and
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numerous public meetings. I think the Council members can see the value. It's, you
know, Vince has spoken quite well about it ... see the value of the community input that
we're getting in the planning process. I think all the feedback from the community
process will ... the strategic planning process will only help to expedite the upcoming
community planning process. And as I understand it Haiku as the end of last year was
the fastest growing community in the State even . . . they outpacing Kihei, and so we
need to get a handle on this and that's what the strategic planning process is about. So
please continue funding, as you have in the past, this process. And I also wanted to add
on a personal note, and I think a few others that I know in the community are very much
in favor of Rex's program to get the acreage for the fire station, and I'm very much for it
and I'd like to see that, but please continue the funding for our strategic planning process.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Daniells. Members, any questions for Mr. Daniells? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony this evening. Briana Welker followed by Jack ... ?
Forgive me Jack ...
MR. LICHA (spoke from the audience): Licha.
CHAIR KANE: Licha. Thank you. Jack Licha. Good evening.
MS. WELKER: Good evening. Hi, my name is Briana Welker. I'm here on behalf of the MEO
YouthBank and AmeriCorps. This year I have through this program been given the
opportunity to work under Art Medeiros with Maui Restoration Group, and this
opportunity has (end of tape) I have met some of the most passionate and inspiring
people that have ever entered my life and then too without a doubt the most inspiring
places of my life. The biggest of which would probably be the auwahi reforestation
project. There's an area there that is undoubtedly one of the most beautiful restoration
projects I've ever seen. The contrast between the kukui grass pastures and the young
forest that's growing is mind-blowing, and I wouldn't have been given this experience if
it were for the AmeriCorps program. So I truly hope that this program will continue to
get its funding because people like myself that have these experiences are gonna be the
future of Maui, we're gonna keep it beautiful, we're gonna be the staff, the groups like
East Maui Watershed are looking for, we're gonna be the passionate people behind the
restoration of Maui. So, yes, I truly hope that MEO gets its funding for programs like
mme. Thank you.
(applause)
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Welker. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you.
And Art Medeiros is a great man.
MS. WELKER (spoke from the audience): I know because (inaudible)
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CHAIR KANE: Yes, he's awesome. Thank: you. Jack Licha, excuse me ... (laughter) ...
followed ... and I have Mark Sheehan, but I know Mark had to leave, but I think: he
might have left something. So we'll make sure we get that distributed. Good evening.
MR. LICHA: Hi. Good evening. My name is Jack Licha. I, I bought a five acre parcel couple
years ago on Upper Ulumalu Road, and I'm here obviously about the repair of Upper
Ulumalu Road. I paid a lot of money for that property. It's not cheap. It's very
expensive, and I was very disappointed I . . . when I moved there, when I bought the
house, I was assuming that the road was being taken care of by the County because I was
told it was a County road, and it was being maintained by the County very nicely.
Unfortunately as of the last I don't know year or couple years with some of the ... they
run the water pipe through there and all that. I'm not gonna go on and on about this
because I'm sure you're all familiar with the situation. I don't wanna bore you, but I am
just here to show my support and urge you to please bring us some County services, and I
know I'm not suppose to talk about this, but we also have no trash pick up. I have to load
the trash in my car that's all I'm gonna say about that. And it's ... for living in such an
expensive areas it's kind of strange not to have any public services or ... it's like I'm
living in a third world country. It would have been a lot cheaper for me just to move to a
third world country and then I have a lot of money left in the bank to hire servants and
things to come and wait on me and fix my roads, and do whatever I need done. So
anyway, I love Maui. I love Haiku. I plan on staying here for the rest of my life, and I
really hope that you guys will all support us to have some County services there, okay,
thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you, Mr. Licha. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for coming. You said you bought your property
two years ago?
MR. LICHA: Couple years ago, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and some ... and who told you that the road was a
County road?
MR. LICHA: The owner of the property that's, that sold me the property.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The owner that sold you the property told you that.
MR. LICHA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ...
MR. LICHA: No, I don't have it in writing. I didn't think: to include that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What about the realtor did they tell you anything about it?
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MR. LICHA: You know there were so, there's so many issues involved in buying a house. You
know you gotta have it looked over by experts and that's a very nerve-racking
experience, and that wasn't something that never even occurred to me that would be an
Issue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
received trash pick up?

And do you know if residents on the road have ever

MR. LICHA: Well, we were able to take our trash to the, to Pakanu. Unfortunately some of the
residents were not handling that responsibly, and the dogs were throwing it all over the
road, and so I went out there and cleaned it up myself just 'cause I don't like driving pass
that I ... you know as I said before it's ... I paid a lot of money to live there, and I don't
wanna live in a trashy neighborhood. So, yeah, we use to have that, but we no longer
have that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you recall when it was cut off?
MR. LICHA: Was about ... ? You know I've had so many things to deal with since then. I'm
guessing it was about four months ago ... does anybody know? June. Okay, June.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: June oflast year you stopped getting trash service?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (spoke from the audience): (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And were you notified?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (spoke from the audience): (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could someone send me a copy of the notice. Do you
have a copy of it?
KANE: Okay, we're trying to maintain things on record-MR. LICHA: Yeah, so I'm sorry, I apologize again for bringing that issue up.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. No.
MR. LICHA: It's just ... yeah ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (spoke from the audience): (inaudible)
MR. LICHA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Yes, Ms., Ms. Johnson right there.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out is your property zoned rural?
You're in a rural area the zoning? Or is it agriculture zoned?
MR. LICHA: It's agricultural, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And what ... you're doing fanning, correct?
MR. LICHA: I, I have pasture.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I, I, just you know-MR. LICHA: Yeah. So I have horses.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --'cause I know some of our other agricultural subdivisions
who are making similar requests for all these services and we're gonna have to figure out
how we're gonna pay for it.
MR. LICHA: Yeah, it's, it's, it's ... you know there are a lot of residents up and down that
road, and each individual home has different . . . you know if they don't use it for
agricultural purposes then they pay regular, you know, regular residential taxes. I'm
actually planning on using that agricultural land to start a nursery and do a lot of other
things, but I'm gonna slowly transition into that which I'm working on gradually in my
own time ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Great, and one other question too. Is anybody in the area
that you know of doing any vacation rentals where individuals who'd be coming into the
area to rent hotel or rent rooms?
MR. LICHA: Not that I know of. No. I don't even think you're allowed to do that actually.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR.

Sure.

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions?
testimony.

Hearing none.

Thank you very much for your

MR. LICHA: Thank you. Thank you. I appreciate it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and again, Members, Mark Sheehan wanted to testify, but he had to
leave. And our final sign up is Mr. Sandy Baz, and if there's anybody else here who has
not testified that would like to testify, now is your opportunity to come to see our staff
and sign up on a sign up sheet. Thank you. Good evening, Mr. Baz.
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MR. BAZ: Aloha. Good evening, Chair Kane and Committee Members. My name is Sandy
Baz, and I'm the Executive Director of Maui Economic Opportunity. Thank you for
again taking this opportunity to come to the community to listen, to understand the needs
of the community.
We submitted a budget proposal to the Mayor back in December of last year for this
current cycle. In that budget request, and the largest portion of what you see, what you
heard in reduction was a $3.1 million request for a new transportation baseyard. That
transportation baseyard we're currently at as you know the MCC dorms are nearly
finished or they're gonna be finished by I think August of this year. They are already
complaining about our buses, fumes, and noises, and they're wondering what time we
start in the morning, and we're saying okay, we start up our buses at,
between 4:30-5 o'clock in the morning, and so they're concerned that the students are
gonna be interrupted in their sleep. They won't be able to go to class because of all of
our buses rumbling over there. They also, the construction of a housing and commercial
unit where the golf carts, golf . . . no go-carts are right now will be another problem
coming up in the next year. We have diligently worked with A&B on purchasing a piece
of property. It is going to be going in front of their board for final decision very shortly.
The Mayor saw fit to take that out of our budget request. I know it was in the budget
request, and it was in his budget for awhile up until a few weeks ago, and I'm not sure
exactly why it was reduced, but he did say was because we didn't have a final agreement
with A&B yet. So that was $3.1 million. As, as you know I was in front of you last year
and we had received $400,000 thanks to your support for the purchase of that land and,
you know, the negotiations of that land. It looks like it's gonna cost us about $2.4 million
for that ten acres ofland. We are working with the State to get $3.5 million so that there
will be a fair share of cost allocated between the State and the County as well we're
looking for private foundation funds in that same ... about 3 to $3.5 million range. So
that was $3.1 million reduction. We also requested in our transportation operations a fuel
increase of 40 percent. That fuel increase is based on our actual numbers up on to
December of what we've been spending over our budget, and it's a 40 percent increase
over last year's funding. We also asked for an increase of 5 percent for salary increases
for our employees.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. BAZ: They have not had raises in a few years, and it would be fair to them. The County
employees looks like will be getting a 9.6 percent increase this year in the salaries. I
looked at the budget and I saw that ... so I thought a 5 percent increase is reasonable and
we have a hard time right now keeping our employees. So it would be nice if it was a
bigger increase but, but that's what we're looking at right now. I was quite concerned
listening to the Budget Director on Wednesday morning say that he gave all of the
County . . . . the County fuel use increases of 30 percent when, when the budget was
produced from the Mayor our fuel increases were cut from 40 percent request down to a
20 percent request--
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MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. BAZ: --and that's over last year's funding versus the ... they got a 30 percent over their
last year's funding plus their additions this year so that kind of concerned me as well.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Members, questions? Mr. Pontanilla, did you have
questions for Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No, I think Sandy said it all. So basically the bulk of the
funding from the County would be the purchase of some land for your transportation
department.
MR. BAZ: Yes, we're actually going to the State for the purchase of the land, and the County
we're looking for support of the construction of the, a new transportation facility. And
Mr. Pontanilla, your question about the Federal cuts, these reductions will not be
impacting Federal cuts that we receive. Since we do get Federal programs, as you are
probably well aware of, the Federal government, Congress issued a 1 percent across the
board cut for all Federal programs, and so we are seeing that Federal cut in some of our
Federal programs, but this money ... the County funds about 33 percent of MEO's
operations or about $17 million in County funds about, about 33 percent. So there will be
no, this will not impact that. It just impacts the services that we're able to provide to the
citizens ofMaui County.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So there's ... the money doesn't leverage on any of the
Federal dollars then?
MR. BAZ: We do leverage the County funds to other Federal dollars, but it's not a percentage
basis. It's the availability of services that we provide. We're able to utilize, for example,
the Transit Transportation, the employment for low-income and disabled individuals
that's part of the MEO grant from the County, we've gotten a Federal grant through the
Community Transportation Association of America to match into that so that we can
increase that employment transportation, which by the way we've had about a, a 200
percent increase since the gas cap went into effect.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Mr. Baz. Thank you for coming here. Just so
the Committee gets it clear, the Mayor's submittal with regards to your budget, that is the
withdrawal of the land purchase for your bus depot, and are there any other programs that
have been cut-MR. BAZ: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --via the Mayor's program? If you could just highlight some
ofthe major programs and you know what kind of impacts it will have on it.
MR. BAZ: Sure. I have to get back to you on the exact impacts, but the Enlace Hispano
Program was ... our request was for $175,000 they reduced it to 65 ... to $110,000 so
it's a $65,000 reduction. Headstart they only reduced $150 so I think we can be okay
with that. A $100 for Kahi Kamalii, that's the infant and toddler center programs. So
they seem to like the, the youth, you know, the education programs, but the others they
cut. The MEO Business Development Corporation, the micro loans, and the business
classes they cut $25,000 from our requests. And the YouthBank, which was planning to
expand to Kihei and Molokai, they cut $30,200 from our requests.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Were there any programs that received an mcrease or
proposed increase from the Mayor's?
MR. BAZ: Yeah ... well, if you look at it, like the transportation even though they, he took out
$276,000 from our requests in operations, it's increased from last year, but it still not
gonna cover the cost of our existing services as they've increased over this past year. So,
so it, it ... we did get a slight increase in our actual funding levels, but the services that
we provide, you know, like everybody else our costs have gone up and, but we need to
make sure that we can provide those services and that's why we put in those requests as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming Mr. Baz. Will you be giving this
information to us in writing in detail?
MR. BAZ: I will give it to you in writing and in detail. Yeah, our ... we're trying to work with
the County Administration right now to try to figure out what exactly they reduced us and
how they got to the numbers that they reduced us to because we put in our requests and
we detailed out what our requests are. And we could just go and say okay, because we're
reducing this much money I'm not gonna be able to expand YouthBank to Molokai or to
Kihei. I'm not gonna be able to expand MEO BDC to Molokai 'cause it's a, there's a
big, a need ... we're seeing huge shift in the people of Molokai and their desire to start
small businesses and to really grow their economy, and we had very, we've been very
successful over there, but I, I don't know what they ... are, were planning on, the
Administration was planning when they reduced the budget in that amount.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when you send this in writing to us, could you indicate
where your budget is flat, where it was-MR. BAZ: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --your requests were flat, and where they were expansive
requests and ... and then where it was cut.
MR. BAZ: Yes. I will give you all of the detail.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Baz. One other requests in your ...
MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: If you can provide us perhaps a timeline and correlate that with the percentage
of your total budget that comes from the County.
MR. BAZ: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: So I know that you talked about at this point is 33 percent so that we can see if
it was less it's going more, ifit was more it's going less-MR. BAZ: It's getting less.
CHAIR KANE: --so we can see the trend.
MR. BAZ: Okay, it is getting less. But can I testify ... I'm a resident of Haiku can I ... ?
CHAIR KANE: We've actually given you a lot more than what everybody else has, Mr. Baz.
So if you'd like we'd be more than happy to allow you to speak to the Members after, but
in all fairness to everybody else I would have to say no. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, one more question. Sandy, you said that you're in
negotiations with A&B for this ten acres.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And where is that, or can you ten us?
MR. BAZ: Yes. It is between the Sugar Museum and what they're planning to be Maui
Business Park Phase II. It's flat, feral ag land that has been sitting vacant for many, many
years. Actually it use to be, it's zoned residential because it use to be teacher housing a
long, long time ago. It's where the old Puunene Avenue that use to come in front of that
mill ends, yeah, it just got cut and where the new Mokulele Highway goes that's where
we're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so how close are you to closing this? I mean I know
you don't have the money yet but ...
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MR. BAZ: Well, A&B ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean it is certain-MR. BAZ: Yeah. We have been working with A&B for ... diligently for about eight months on
this, going back and forth, getting appraisals, getting valuations and, and sending them
the letters of intent back and forth, and we're at the stage where they are going to their
board which is a pretty big step. Once their board approves it then it'll, then it'll be
authorized. The reason why their board has to approve it versus just a regular phase is
because the appraisal value is about $6.7 million and so 2.4 is quite a big difference and
we're asking a donation on, on the rest ofthat.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Baz, thank you very much.
MR. BAZ: Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No, don't apologize. Thank you. Thank you for your testimony. Again, one
final opportunity. If there's anybody here who has not testified, if you'd like to now is
your chance. Seeing nobody approaching thank you very much to this community for
allowing us to come and hear your concerns. We will be meeting ... the next meeting
that we will have is gonna be Tuesday morning at nine o'clock in the Council Chambers
and then we will be over in Kihei on Tuesday the March 28 th at six o'clock at the Kihei
Aquatic Center or the community center which is right next. So if anybody's around
there, if you have other people would like to communicate to us, please let them know.
Thank you very much folks. We appreciate your presence tonight. This meeting is
adjourned. (gavel)

ADJOURN:

7:25 p.m.
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